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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

DALLAS DIVISION

RALPH S. JANVEY, IN HIS CAPACITY AS §

COURT-APPOINTED RECEIVER FOR THE §

STANFORD INTERNATIONAL BANK, LTD., §

ET AL. §
§ Case No. 03:09-CV-2151-N

Plaintiff, §

§

V. §

§

REBECCA REEVES, §

§

Defendant. §

APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF RECEIVER’S RESPONSE
TO REBECCA REEVES-STANFORD’S MOTION TO DISMISS

Receiver Ralph S. Janvey, through undersigned counsel, hereby submits this Appendix in
Support of his Response to Rebecca Reeves-Stanford’s Motion to Dismiss, filed concurrently

herewith.

Exhibit Description
1. Documents Filed in S.D. Fla.
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Dated: December 29, 2009 Respectfully submitted,

BAKER BOTTS L.L.P.

By: /s/ Kevin M. Sadler
Kevin M. Sadler
Texas Bar No. 17512450
kevin.sadler@bakerbotts.com
Robert I. Howell
Texas Bar No. 10107300
robert.howell@bakerbotts.com
David T. Arlington
Texas Bar No. 00790238
david.arlington@bakerbotts.com
1500 San Jacinto Center
98 San Jacinto Blvd.
Austin, Texas 78701-4039
(512) 322-2500
(512) 322-2501 (Facsimile)

Timothy S. Durst

Texas Bar No. 00786924
tim.durst@bakerbotts.com
2001 Ross Avenue

Dallas, Texas 75201

(214) 953-6500

(214) 953-6503 (Facsimile)

ATTORNEYS FOR RECEIVER
RALPH S. JANVEY

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

On December 29, 2009, I electronically submitted the foregoing document with the clerk
of the court of the U.S. District Court, Northern District of Texas, using the electronic case filing
system of the court.

/s/ Kevin M. Sadler
Kevin M. Sadler
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AMS, CLOSED

U.S. District Court
Southern District of Florida (Miami)
CIVIL DOCKET FOR CASE #: 1:09-mc-20446-UU

Securities and Exchange Commission v. Stanford International Bank, Date Filed: 02/20/2009

Ltd. et a Date Terminated: 02/23/2009

Assigned to: Judge Ursula Ungaro Nature of Suit: 850 SecuritiesCommodities
Referred to: Magistrate Judge Andrea M. Simonton Jurisdiction: Federal Question

Cause: Appointment of receiver

Plaintiff
Securities and Exchange Commission

V.
Defendant
Stanford I nternational Bank, Ltd.

Defendant
Stanford Group Company

Defendant
Stanford Capital Management, LLC

Defendant
R. Allen Stanford

Defendant
James M. Davis

Defendant
L aura Pendergest-Holt

Date Filed # | Docket Text

02/20/2009 1 | ORDER Appointing Receiver from Northern District of Texas appointing Ralph S. Janvey as
receiver. Filing fee $39.00 Receipt#: 995521, filed by Securities and Exchange Commission.
(adl) (Entered: 02/20/2009)

02/23/2009 2 | Administrative Order Closing Case. Signed by Judge Ursula Ungaro (ail) (Entered: 02/24/2009)

02/25/2009 3 | SUPPLEMENT 1 ORDER Appointing Receiver from Northern District of Texas appointing
Ralph S. Janvey asreceiver. (yc) (Entered: 02/25/2009)
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1500 SAN JACINTO CENTER  AUSTIN

98 SAN JACINTO BIVD. BEIING
BAKER BOTTS el o e
LLP 78701-4078 DUBAI
HONG KONG
TEL +1512.322.2500 HOUSTON
FAX +1 512.322.2501 LONDON
www.bakerbotts.com MOSCOW
NEW YORK
PALO ALTO
February 19, 2009 RIYADH
WASHINGTON
Kevin Sadler
BY COURIER TEL +1512.322.2589
FAX +1512.322.8332
Steven M. Larimore kevin.sadler@bakerbotts.com

Clerk of the Court

U.S. District Court for Southern District of Florida
Wilkie D. Ferguson, Jr. United States Courthouse
400 North Miami Avenue, 8th Floor

Miami, FI. 33128

Re:  Securities and Exchange Commission v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.;
Case No. 3-09-cv-00298-L in the United States District Court for the Northern
District of Texas, Dallas Division

Dear Mr. Larimore:

On February 17, 2009 the Court filed an order appointing Ralph S. Janvey
receiver in the above-referenced case. Property, assets, and/or records that are part of the
Receivership Estate are located within this District. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 754 and 1692, find
enclosed the following court papers: (1) Complaint; (2) Temporary Restraining Order, Order
Freezing Assets, Order Requiring an Accounting, Order Requiring Preservation of Documents,
and Order Authorizing Expedited Discovery; (3) Order Appointing Receiver; and (4) Notice of
Appearance of Counsel for Receiver.

Also enclosed are Form JS-44 and the $39 filing fee for a miscellaneous case.

Sf cerelyﬂ7

Kevin Sadler

SDA:sda
Enclosures
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\/ ‘/ UH!GINAL U.S. DISTRICT COURT

EXAS
NORTHERN DISTRICTOFT
FILED
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
DALLAS DIVISION ;

o T
% CLERK,US. ISTRICT COUX

. "'3; . BY 'Dtpll*y

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE CON%S%F’“’
byﬁ__{i D.C.

FEB 20 26539

v ' STEVEN M. LARI COMPLAINT

AN CLERK]‘L::LSA DiST.

STANFORD INTERNATIONAL BANK-EER[FLA. - Mg

STANFORD GROUP COMPANY, ‘é 0 9CV0 2 98-L
STANFORD CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC,

R. ALLEN STANFORD, JAMES M. DAVIS, and 9 4

LAURA PENDERGEST-HOLT
MAGISTR A

Plaintiff,

L O LYy O L

Defendants.

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission alleges:

TE JUpey
SUMMARY SIMONTON T
1. The Commission seeks emergency relief to halt a massive, ongoing fraud

orchestrated by R. Allen Stanford and James M. Davis and executed through companies they
control, including Stanford International Bank, Ltd. (“SIB”) and its affiliated Houston-based
investment advisers, Stanford Group Company (“SGC”) and Stanford Capital Management
(“SCM™). Laura Pendergest-Holt, the chief investment officer of a Sténford affiliate, was
indispensable to this scheme by helping to preserve the appearance of safety fabricated by
Stanford and by training .others to mislead investors. For example, she trained training SIB’s
senior investment officer to provide false information to investors.

2. Through this fraudulent scheme, SIB, acting through a network of SGC findncial
advisors, has sold approximately $8 billion of self-styled “certificates of deposi > by promising

high return rates that exceed those avaﬂable through true certificates of deposits offered by

traditional banks.
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3. SIB claims that its unique inQestment strategy has allowed it to achieve double-
digit returns on its investments over the past 15 years, allowing it offer high yields to CD
purchasers. Indeed, SIB claims that its “diversified portfolio of investments” lost only 1.3% in
2008, a time during which the S&P 500 lost 39% and the Dow Jones STOXX Europe 500 Fund
lost 41%.

4. Perhaps even more strange, SIB reports identical returns in 1995 and 1996 of
exactly 15.71%. As Pendergest-Holt — SIB investment committee member and the chief
investment officer of Stanford Group Financial (a Stanford affiliate) — admits, it is simply
“improbable” that SIB could have managed a “global diversified” portfo}io of investments in a
way that refurned identical results in consecutive years. A performa;ce reporting consultant
hired by SGC, when asked about these “improbable” returns, responded simply that it is
“impossible” to achieve identical results on a diversified investment portfolio in consecutive
years. Yet, SIB continues to promote its CDs using these improbable returns.

5. These improbable results are made even more suspicious by the fact that, contrary
to assurances provided to investors, at most only two people — Stanford and Davis — know the
details concerning the bulk of SIB’s investment portfolio. And SIB goes to great lengths to
prevent any true independent examination of those portfolios. For example, its long-standing
auditor is reportedly retained based on a “relationship of trust” between the head of the auditing
firm and Stanford.

6. Importantly, contrary to recent public statements by SIB, Stanford and Davis (and

through them SGC) have wholly-failed to cooperate with the Commission’s efforts to account

for the $8 billion of investor funds purportedly held by SIB. In short, approximately 90% of

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 2
COMPLAINT
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SIB’s claimed investment portfolio resides in a “black box™ shielded from any independent
oversight.

7. In fact, far from “cooperating” with the Commission’s enforcement investigation
(which Stanford has reportedly tried to characterize as only involving routine examinations),
SGC appearé to have used press reports speculating about the Commission’s investigation as
way to further mislead investors, falsely telling at least one customer during the week of
February 9, 2009, that his multi-million dollar SIB CD could not be redeemed because “the SEC
had frozen the account for two months.” At least one other customer who recently inquired
about redeeming a multi-million dollar CD claims that he was informed that, contrary to
repfesentations made at the time of purchase that the CD could be redeemed early upon payment
of a penalty, R. Allen Stanford had ordered a two-month moratorium on CD redemptions.

8. This secrecy and recent misrepresentations are made even more suspicious by
extensive and fundamental misrepresentations SIB and its advisors have made to CD purchasers
in order to lull them into thinking their investment is safe. SIB and its advisers have
misrepresented to CD purchasers that their deposits are safe because the bank: (i) re-invests client
funds primarily in “liquid” financial instruments (the “portfolio™); (ii) monitors the portfolio through
a team of 20-plus analysts; and (iii) is subject to yearly audits by Antiguan regulators. Recently, as
the market absorbed the news of Bernard Madoff’s massive Ponzi scheme, SIB has attempted to
calm its own investors by claiming the bank has no “direct or indirect” exposure to Madoff's
scheme.

9. These assurances are false. Contrary to these representations, SIB’s investment
portfolio was not invested in liquid financial instruments or allocated in the manner described in its

promotional material and public reports. Instead, a substantial portion of the bank’s portfolio was

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 3
COMPLAINT '
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placed in illiquid investments, such as real estate and private equity. Further, the vast majority
SIB’s multi-billion dollar investment portfolio was not monitored by a team of analysts, but rather
by two people — Allen Stanford and James Davis. And contrary to SIB’s representations, the
Antiguan regulator responsible for oversight of the bank’s portfolio, the Financial Services
Regulatory Commission, does not audit SIB’s portfolio or verify the assets SIB claims in its
financial statements. Perhaps most alarming is that SIB has exposure to losses from the Madoff
fraud scheme despite the bank’s public assurances to the contrary.

10.  SGC has failed to disclose material facts to its advisory clients. Alarmingly, recent
weeks have seen an increasing amount of liquidation activity by SIB and attempts to wire money
out of its investment portfolio. The Commission has received information indicating that in just
the last two weeks, SIB has sought to remove over $178 million from its accounts. And, a major
clearing firm — after unsuccessfully attempting to find information about SIB’s financial
condition and because it could not obtain adequate transparency into SIB’s financials— has
recently informed SGC that it would no longer process wires from SGC accounts at the clearing
firm to SIB for the purchase of SIB issued CDs, even if they were accompanied by customer
letters of authorization.

11.  Stanford’s fraudulent conduct is not limited to the sale of CDs. Since 2005, SGC
advisers have sold more than $1 billion of a proprietary mutual fund wrap program, called Stanford
Allocation Strategy (“SAS”), by using ﬁateﬁally false and misleading historical performance data.
The false data has helped SGC grow the SAS program from less than $10 million in around 2004 to
over $1.2 billion, generating fees for SGC (and ultimately Stanford) in excess of $25 million. And

the fraudulent SAS performance was used to recruit registered financial advisers with significant

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd,, et al, 4
COMPLAINT
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v, Y

books of business, who were then heavily incentivized to re-allocate their clients’ assets to SIB’s
CD pfogram.

12.  Moreover, SIB and Stanford Group Company have violated Section 7(d) of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 by failing to register with the Commission in order to sell SIB’s
CDs. Had they complied with this registration requirement, the Commission would have been able
to examine each of those entities concerning SIB’s CD investment portfolio.

13. By engaging in the conduct described in this Complaint, defendants Stanford,
Davis, Pendergest-Holt, SIB, SGC, and Stanford Capital, directly or indirectly, singly or in
concert, have engaged, and unless enjoined and restrained, will again engage in transactions acts,
practices, and courses of business that constitute violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act
of 1933 (“Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§ 77¢(a), 77¢(c) and 77q(a)], and Sectioﬁ 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)], and Exchange Act Rule
10b-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] or, in the alternative, have aided and abetted such violations. In
addition, through their conduct described herein, Stanford, SGC, and Stanford Capital have
violated Section 206(1) and (2) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (“Adviser’s Act”) [15
U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1) and 80b-6(2)] and Davis and Pendergest-Holt have aided and abetted such
violations. Finally, through their actions, SIB and SGC have violated Section 7(d) of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 (“ICA”) [15 U.S.C. § 80a-7(d)].

14. The Commission, m the interest of protecting the public from any further
unscrupulous and illegal activity, brings this action against the defendants, seeking temi)orary,
preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, disgorgement of all illicit profits and benefits
defendants have received plus accrued prejudgment interest and a civil monetary penalty. The

Commission also secks an asset freeze, an accounting and other incidental relief, as well as the

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al, 5
COMPLAINT
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appointment of a receiver to take possession and control of defendants’ assets for the protection
of defendants’ victims.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

15.  The investments offered and sold by the defendants are “securities” under Section
2(1) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77b], Section 3(a)(10) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §
78c], Section 2(36) of the Investment Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-2(36)], and Section
202(18) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-2(18)].

16.  Plaintiff Commission brings this action under the authority conferred upon it by
Section 20(b) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(b)], Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act [15
U.S.C. § 78u(d)], Section 41(d) of the Investment Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-41(d)], and
Section 209(d) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-9(d)] to temporarily, preliminarily, and
permanently enjoin Defendants from future violations of the federal securities laws.

17.  This Court has jurisdiction over this action, and venue is proper, under Section
22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77v(a)], Section 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §
78aa], Section 43 of the In.vestment Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-43], and Section 214 of the
Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-14).

18. Defendants have, directly or indirectly, made use of the means or instruments of
transportation and communication, and the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or
of the mails, in connection witﬁ the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of business alleged
herein. Certain of the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of business occurred in the

Northern District of Texas.

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 6
COMPLAINT :
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DEFENDANTS

19.  Stanford International Bank, Ltd. purports to be private international bank
domiciled in St. John’s, Antigua, West Indies. SIB clalms to serve 30,000 clients in 131
countries and holds $7.2 billion in assets under management. SIB’s Annual Report for 2007
states that SIB has 50,000 clients. SIB’s multi-billion 1-)ortfolio'of investments is purportedly
monitored by the SFG’s chief financial officer in Memphis, :TéﬁnCSSee. Unlike a commercial
bank, SIB does not loan money. SIB sells the CD to U.S. imfé_stc}rs th_rough SGC, its affiliated
investrnent adviser. [

20.  Stanford Group Company, a Houston-based corpc.)ratlon is registered with the
Commission as a broker-dealer and investment adv1ser It has 29 ofﬁces located throughout the
U.S. SGC’s principal busmess consists of sales of SIB- 1ssﬁed sécunhes marketed as
certlﬁcates of deposit. SGC is a wholly owned subs1dlary of S;anford Group Holdings, Inc.,
which in turn is owned by R. Allen Stanford (“Stanford”). "g

21.  Stanford Capital Management, a registered investment adviser, took over the
management of the SAS program (formerly Mutual Fund PartnErs) from SGC in early 2007.
Stanford Group Company markets the SAS program through SCM.

22.  R. Allen Stanford, a U.S. citizen, is the Chairman of the Board and sole
shareholder of SIB and the sole director of SGC’s parent company. Stanford refused to appear
and give testimony in the investigation.

23.  James M. Davis, a U.S. citizen and resident of Baldwin, Mississippi and who

offices in Memphis, Tennessee and Tupelo, Mississippi, is a director and chief financial officer

of SFG and SIB. Davis refused to appear and give testimony in this investigation.

SEC'v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd,, et al. 7
COMPLAINT
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24.  Laura Pendergest-Holt, is the Chief Investment Officer of SIB and its affiliate
Stanford Financial Group. She supervises a group of analysts in Memphis, Tupelo, and St. Croix
who “oversee” performance of SIB’s Tier II assets.

STATEMENT OF FACTS AND ALLEGATIONS
RELEVANT TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

A. The Stanford International Bank

25.  Allen Stanford has created a complex web of affiliated companies that exist and
operate under the brand Stanford Financial Group (“SFG”). SFG is described as a priglately-held
group of companies that has in excess of $50 billion “under advisement.”

26. SIB, one of SFG’s affiliates, is a private, offshore bank that purports to have an
independent Board of Directors, an Investment Committee, a Chief Investment Officer and a
team of research analysts. While SIB may be domiciled in Antigua, a small group of SFG
employees who maintain offices in Memphis, Tennessee, and Tupelo, Mississippi, purportedly
monitor the assets.

27.  Asof November 28, 2008, SIB reported $8.5 billion in total assets. SIB’s primary
product is the CD. SIB aggregates customer deposits, and then re-invests those funds in a
“globally diversified portfolib” of assets. SIB claims its investment portfolio is approximately
$8.4 billion. SIB sold more than $1 billion in CDs per year between 2005 and 2007, including
sales to U.S. investors. The bank’s deposits increased from $3.8 billion in 2005, to $5 billion in
2006, and $6.7 billion in 2007. SIB had approximately $3.8 billion in CD sales to 35,000

customers in 2005. By the end of 2007, SIB sold $6.7 billion of CDs to 50,000 customers.

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd,, et al. 8
COMPLAINT
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28.  For almost fifteen years, SIB represented that it has experienced consistently high

returns on its investment of deposits (ranging from 11.5% in 2005 to 16.5% in 1993):

STANFORD INTERNATIONAL BANK
Raturn Vs. intsrest Paid To Depositors
18.0%

16.0% -

14.0%

12.0%

20%

0.0%

1982 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 4988 1989 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2008

29. In fact, since 1994, SIB has never failed to hit targeted investment returns in
excess of 10%. And, SIB claims that its “diversified portfolio of investments” lost only $110
million or 1.3% in 2008. During the same time period, the S&P 500 lost 39% and the Dow
Jones STOXX Europe 500 Fund lost 41%.

30.  As performance reporting consultant hired by SGC testified in the Commission’s
investigation, SIB’s historical returns are improbable, if not impossible. In 1995 and 1996, SIB
reported identical returns of 15.71%, a remarkable achievement considering the bank’s
“diversified investment portfolio.” According to defendant Pendergest-Holt -- the chief
investment officer of SIB-affiliate SFG — it is “improbable” that SIB could have managed a
“global diversified” portfolio of investments so that it returned identical results in consecutive
years. SGC’s performance reporting consultant was more emphatic, saying that it is
“impossible” to achieve identical results on a diversified investment portfolio in consecutive

years. SIB continues to promote its CDs using these improbable, if not impossible, returns.
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31.  SIB’s consistently high returns of investment have enabled the bank to pay a
consistently and significantly higher rate on its CD than conventional banks. For example, SIB
offered 7.45% as of June 1, 2005, and 7.878% as of March 20, 2006, for a fixed rate CD based
on an investment of $100,000. On November 28, 2008, SIB-quoted 5.375% on a 3 year CD,
while comparable U.S. Banks’ CDs paid under 3.2%. And recently, SIB quoted rates of over
10% on five year CDs.

32, SIB’s extraordinary returns have enabled the bank to pay disproportionately large
commissions to SGC for the sale of SIB CDs. In 2007, SIB paid to SGC and affiliates $291.7
million in management fees and commissions from CD sales, up from $211 million in 2006 and
$161 million in 2005.

33.  SIB markets CDs to investors in the United States exclusively through SGC
advisers pursuant to a claimed Regulation D offering, filing a Form D with the SEC. Regulation
D permits under certain circumstances the sale of unregistered securities (the CDs) to accredited
investors in the United States. SGC receives 3% based on the aggregate sales of CDs by SGC
advisers. Financial advisers also receive a 1% commission upon the sale of the CDs, and are
eligible to receive as much as a 1% trailing commission throughout the term of the CD.

34.  SGC promoted this generous commission structure in its effort to recruit
established financial advisers to the firm. The commission structure also provided a powerful
incentive for SGC financial advisers to aggressively sell CDs to United States investors, and
aggressively expanded its number of financial advisers in the United States.

35.  SIB purportedly manages the investment portfolio from Memphis and Tupelo.
SIB’s investment portfolio, at least internally, is segregated into 3 tiers: (a) cash and cash

equivalents (“Tier 1), (b) investments with “outside portfolio managers (25+)” that are
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monitored by the Analysts (“Tier 2”), and (c) unknown assets under the apparent control of
Stanford and Davis (“Tier 3”). As of December 2008, Tier 1 represented approximately 9%
($800 million) of the Bank’s portfolio. Tier 2, prior to the Bank’s decision to liquidate $250
million of investments in late 2008, represented 10% of the portfolio. And Tier 3 represented
81% of the Bank’s investment portfolio. This division into tiers is not generally disclosed to
actual or potential investors.

B. SIB’s Fraudulent Sale of CDs

1. SIB Misrepresented that Its Investment Portfolio is Invested Primarily in
“Liquid” Financial Instruments.

36.  Inselling the CD, SIB touted the liquidity of its investment portfolio. For
example, in its CD brochure, SIB emphasizes the importance of the liquidity, stating, under the
heading “Depositor Security,” that the bank focuses on “maintaining the highest degree of
liquidity as a protective factor for our depositors™ and that the bank’s assets are “invested in a
well-diversified portfolio of highly marketable securities issued by stable governments, strong
multinational companies and major international banks.” Likewise, the bank trained SGC
advisers that “liquidity/marketability of SIB’s invested assets” was the “most important factor to
provide security to SIB clients.” Davis and Pendergest-Holt were aware, or were reckless in not
knowing, of these representations.

37.  Inits 2007 annual report, which was signed and approved by Stanford and Davis,
SIB represented that its portfolio was allocated in the following manner: 58.6% “equity,” !8.6%
fixed income, 7.2% precious metals and 15.6% alternative investments. These allocations were
depicted in a pie chart, which was apﬁroved by Davis. The bank’s annual reiaorts for 2005 and
2006 make similar representations about the allocation of the bank’s portfolio. Davis and

Stanford knew or were reckless in not knowing of these representations.
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38.  SIB’sinvestment portfolio is not, however, invested in a “well-diversified
portfolio of highly marketable securities issued by stable governments, strong multinational
companies and major international banks.” Instead, Tier 3 (i.e., approximately 90%) consisted
primarily of illiquid investments — namely private equity and real estate. Indeed, it SIB’s
portfolio included at least 23% private equity. The bank never disclosed in its financial
statements its exposure to private equity and real estate investments. Stanford, Davis and
Pendergest-Holt were aware, or were reckless in not knowing, that SIB’s investments were not
allocated as advertised by SIB’s investment objectives or as detailed in SIB’s financial
statements.

39.  Further, on December 15, 2008, Pendergest-Holt met with her team of analysts
following SIB’s decision to liquidate more tﬁan 30% of its Tier 2 investments (approximately
$250 million). During the meetiﬁg, at least one analyst expressed concern about the amount of
liquidations in Tier 2, asking why it was necessary to liquidate Tier 2, rather than Tier 3 assets,
to increase SIB’s liquidity. Pendergest-Holt told the analyst that Tier 3 was primarily invested
in private equity and real estate and Tier 2 was more liquid than Tier 3. Pendergest-Holt also
stated that Tier 3 “always had real estate investments in it.” Pendergest’s statements contradicts

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd,, et al, 12
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what she had previously stated to SIB’s senior investment adviser, knowing, or reckless in not
knowing, that the senior investment advisor would provide this misrepresentation to investors.

2. SIB Misrepresented that Its Multi-Billion Dollar Investment Portfolio is
Monitored By a Team of Analysts

40.  Prior to making their investment decision, prospective investors routinely asked
how SIB safeguarded and monitored its assets. In fact, investors frequently inquired whether
Allen Stanford could “run off with the [investor’s] money.” In response to this question, at least
during 2006 and much of 2007, the bank’s senior investment c;fﬁcer —as instrucfed by
Pendergest-Holt — told investors that SIB had sufficient controls and safeguards in place to
protect assets.

41.  In particular, the SIO was trained by Ms. Pendergest-Holt to tell investors that the
bank’s multi-billion portfolio was “monitored” by the analyst team in Memphis. In
communicating with investors, the SIO followed Pendergest’s instructions, misrepresenting that
a team of 20-plus analysts monitored the bank’s investment portfolio. In so doing, the SIO never
disclosed to investors that the analyst only monitor approximately 10% of SIB’s money. In fact,
Pendergest-Holt trained the SIO “not to divulge too much” about oversight of the Bank’s
portfolio because that information “wouldn’t leave an investor with a lot of confidence.”
Likewise, Davis instructed him to “steer” potential CD investors away from information about
SIB’s portfolio. As a result, both Davis and Pendergest-Holt knew, or were reckless in not
knowing, of these fraudulent misstatements.

42.  Contrary to the representation that responsibility for SIB’s multi-billion portfolio
was “spread out” among 20-plus people, only Stanford and Davis know the whereabouts of the
vast majority of the bank’s multi-billion investment portfolio. Pendergest-Holt and her team of

analysts claim that they have never been privy to Tier 1 or Tier 3 investments. In fact, the SIO
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was repeatedly denied access to the Bank’s records relating to Tier 3, even though he was
responsible, as the Bank’s Senior Investment Officer, for “closing” deals with large investors,
“overseeing the Bank’s investment portfolio” and “ensuring that the investment side is compliant
with the various banking regulatory authorities.” In fact, in preparing the Bank’s period reports
(quarterly newsletters, month reports, mid-year reports and annual reports, Pendergest and the
Analyst send to Davis the performance results for Tier 2 investments. -And Davis calculates the
investment returns for the aggregated portfolio of assets.
3. SIB Misrepresented that its Investment Portfolio is Overseen by a Regulatory

Authority in Antigua that Conducts a Yearly Audit of the Fund’s Financial

Statements.

43, SIB told investors that their deposits were safe because the Antiguan regulator
responsible for oversight of the Bank’s investment portfolio, the Financial Services Regulatory
Commission (the “FSRC”), audited its financial statements. But, contrary to the Bank’s
representations to investors, the FSRC does not verify the assets SIB claims in its financial
statements. Instead, SIB’s accountant, C.A.S. Hewlett & Co., a small local accounting firm in
Antigua is responsible for auditing the multi-billion dollar SIB’s investment portfolio. The
Commission attempted several times to contact Hewlett by telephone. No one ever answered the

phone.

4. SIB Misrepresented that Its Investment Portfolio is Without “Direct or
Indirect” Exposure to Fraud Perpetrated by Bernard Madoff

44.  In a December 2008 Monthly Report, the bank told investors that their money was
safe because SIB “had no direct or indirect exposure to any of [Bernard] Madoff’s investments.”
But, contrary to this statement, at least $400,000 in TierA2 was invested in Meridian, a New
York-based hedge fund that used Tremont Partners as its asset manager. Tremont invested

approximately 6-8% of the SIB assets they indirectly managed with Madoffs investment firm.
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45.  Pendergest, Davis and Stanford knew about this exposurebto loss relating to the
Meridian investment. On December 15, 2008, an Analyst informed Pendergast, Davis and
Stanford in a weekly report that his “rough estimate is a loss of $4OQk . . . based on the indirect
exposure” to Madoff.

3. Market Concerns About SIB’s Lack of Transparency

46.  On or about December 12, 2008, Pershing, citing suspicions about the bank’s
investment returns and its inability to get from the Bank “a rcasonaﬁle level of transparency” into
its investment portfolio‘ inforxﬁed SGC that- it would no longer process wire transfers from SGC
to SIB for the purchase of the CD. Since the spring of 2008, Pershing tried unsuccessfully to get
an independent report regarding SIB’s financials condition. On November 28, 2008, SGC’s
President, Danny Bogar, informed Pershing that “obtaining the independent report was not a
priority.” Between 2006 and December 12, 2008, Pershing sent to SIB 1,635 wire transfers,
totaling approximately $517 million, from approximately 1,199 customer accounts.

D. From at least 2004, SCM misrepresented SAS performance results.

47.  From 2004 through 2009, SCM induced clients, including non-accredited, retail
investors, to invest in excess of $1 billion in its SAS program by touting its track record of
“historical performance.” SCM highlighted the purported SAS track record in thousands of
client presentation books (“pitch books”).

48.  For example, the following chart from a 2006 pitch book presented clients with
the false impression that SAS accounts, from 2000 through 2005, outperformed the S&P 500 by

an average of approximately 13 percentage points:
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SAS Growth 1209% | 16.15% | 3284% | -333% | 432% | 18.04%

S&P 500 491% | 10.83% | 28.68% [-22.10% |-11.88% | 9.11%

SCM used these impressive, but fictitious, performance results to grow the SAS program from
less than $10 million in assets in 2004 to over $1 billion in 2008.

49.  SGC also used the SAS track record to recruit financial advisers away from
legitimate advisory firms who had significant books of business. After arriving at Stanford, the
newly-hired financial advisors were encouraged and highly incentivized to put their clients’
assets in the SIB CD. |

50.  The SAS performance results used in the pitch books from 2005 through 2009
were fictional and/or inflated. Specifically, SCM misrepresented that SAS performance results,
for 1999 through 2004, reflected “histofical performance” when, in fact, those results were
fictional, or “back-tested”, numbers that do not reflect results of actual trading. Instead, SCM,
with the benefit of hindsight, picked mutual funds that performed extremely well during years
1999 through 2004, and presented the back-tested performance of those top-performing funds to
potential clients as if they were actual returns earned by the SAS program.

51.  Similarly, SCM used “actual” model SAS performance results for years 2005
through 2006 that were inflated by as much as 4%.

52.  SCM told investors that SAS has positive returns for periods in which actual SAS
clients lost substantial amounts. For example, in 2000, actual SAS client returns ranged from

negative 7.5% to positive 1.1%. In 2001, actual SAS client returns ranged from negative 10.7%
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to negative 2.1%. And, in 2002, actual SAS client returns ranged from negative 26.6% to
negative 8.7%. These return figures are all gross of SCM advisory fees ranging from 1.5% to
2.75%. Thus, Stanford’s claims of substantial market out performance were blatantly false.
(e.g., a claimed return of 18.04% in 2000, when actual SAS investors lost as much as 7.5%).

53.  SGC/SCM’s management knew that the advertised SAS performance results were
misleading and inflated. From the beginning, SCM management knew that the pre-2005 track
record was purely hypothetical, bearing no relationship to actual trading. And, as early as
November 2006, SCM investment advisers began to question why their actual clients were not
receiving the returns advertised in pitch books.

54.  Inresponse to these questions, SGC/SCM hired an outside performance reporting
expert, to review certain of its SAS performance results. In late 2006 and early 2007, the expert
informed SCM that its performance results for the twelve months ended September 30, 2006
were inflated by as much as 3.4 percentage points. Moreover, the expert informed SCM
managers that the inflated performance results included unexplained “bad math” that consistently
inflated the SAS performance results over actual client performance. Finally, in March 2008, the
expert informed SCM managers that the SAS performance results for 2005 were also inflated by
as much as 3.25 percentage points.

55.  Despite their knowledge of the inflated SAS returns, SGC/SCM management
continued using the pre-2005 track record and never asked Riordan to audit the pre-2005
performance. In fact, in 2008 pitch books, SCM presented the back-tested pre-2005 performance
data under the heading “Historical Performance” and “Manager Performance” along side the
audited 2005 through 2008 figures. According to SCM’s outside consultant, it was “[grossly

misleading]” to present audited performance figures along side back-tested figures.
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56.  Finally, SGC/SCM compounded the deceptive nature of the SAS track record by
blending the back-tested performance with audited composite performance to create annualized 5
and 7 year performance figures that bore no relation to actual SAS client performance. A sample

of this misleading disclosure used in 2008 and 2009 follows:

SAS Growth TARK | 1200% | sa00% | 2E0% | 619% |X2ae |k | 4% {wex |ze

S8&P 500 A% | S29% |1570% | am% | nzew |2eewx |-z ox]1imex] a1 {2100%

okt ST T e o 1 year)

SAS Growth ~TA4% Dag% 9.36% B3R 11.03% 12.30%

S3P 500 H44% | 58k | s | 1w | amx 245%

57.  Other than the fees paid by SIB to SGC for the sale of the CD, SAS was the
second most significant source of revenue for the firm. In 2007 and 2008, approximately $25
million in fees from the marketing of the SAS program.

CAUSES OF ACTION

FIRST CLAIM
AS TO ALL DEFENDANTS

Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10-5
58.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 57 of this
Complaint and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth verbatim.
59.  Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, in connection

with the purchase and sale of securities, by use of the means and instrumentalities of interstate
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commerce and by use of the mails have: (a) employed devices, sphem% and artifices to defraud;
(b) made untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material facts necessary in order
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, practices and courses of business which operate as a fraud
and deceit upon purchasers, prospective purchasers and other persons.

60.  As a part of and in furtherance of their scheme, defendants, directly and
indirectly, prepared, disseminated or used contracts, written offering documents, promotional
materials, investor and other correspondence, and oral presentations, which contained untrue
statements of material facts and misrepresentations of material facts, and which omitted to state
- material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading.

61.  Defendants made the referenced misrepresentations and omissions knowingly or
grossly recklessly disregarding the truth.

62. For these reasons, Defendants have violated and, unless enjoined, will continue to
violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Exchange Act Rule 10b-5

[17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

SECOND CLAIM
AS TO STANFORD, DAVIS, AND PENDERGEST-HOLT

Aiding and Abetting Violations of Exchange Act Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5

63.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 57 of this

Complaint and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth verbatim.
64.  If Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt did not violate Exchange Act Section
10(b) and Rule 10b-5, in the alternative, Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt, in the manner set

forth above, knowingly or with severe recklessness provided substantial assistance in connection
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with the violations of Exchange Act Section 10(b) [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17
C.FR. § 240.10b-5] alleged herein.

65.  For these reasons, Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt aided and abetted and,
unless enjoined, will continue to aid and abet violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act
[15U.8.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

THIRD CLAIM
AS TO ALL DEFENDANTS

Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act

66.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 57 of this
Complaint and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth verbatim.

67.  Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, in the offer and
sale of securities, by use of the means and instruments of transportation and communication in
interstate commerce and by use of thé mails, have: (a) employed devices, schemes or artifices to
defraud; (b) obtained money or property by means of untrue statements of material fact or
omissions to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in transactions,
practices or courses of business which operate or would operate as a fraud or deceit.

| 68. As part of and in furtherance of this scheme, defendants_, directly and indirectly,
prepared, disseminated or used contracts, written offering documents, promotional materials,
investor and other correspondence, and oral presentations, which contained untrue statements of
material fact and which omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.

69.  Defendants made the referenced misrepresentations and omissions knowingly or

grossly recklessly disregarding the truth.
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70.  For these reasons, Defendants have violated, and unless enjoined, will continue to
violate Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].

FOURTH CLAIM
AS TQO STANFORD, SGC, AND STANFORD CAPITAL

Violations of Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act

71.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 57 of this
Complaint and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth verbatim.

72.  Stanford, SGC, and Stanford Capital, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert,
knowingly or recklessly, through the use of the mails or any means or instrumentality of
interstate commerce, while acting as investment advisers within the meaning of Section 202(11)
of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. § 80b-2(11)]: (a) have employed, are employing, or are about to
employ devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud any client or prospective client; or (b) have
engaged, are engaging, or are about to engage in acts, practices, or courses of business which
operates as a fraud or deceit upon any client or prospective client.

73. For these reasoﬁs, Stanford, SGC, and Stanford Capital have violated, and unless
enjoined, will continue to violate Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §§
80b-6(1) and 80b-6(2)].

: FIFTH CLAIM
AS TO STANFORD, DAVIS, AND PENDERGEST-HOLT

Aiding and Abetting Violations of Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act

74.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 57 of this
Complaint and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth verbatim.
75.  Based on the conduct alleged herein, Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt, in the

manner set forth above, knowingly or with severe recklessness provided substantial assistance in
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connection with the violations of Advisers Act Sections 206(1) and 206(2) [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-
6(1) and 80b-6(2)] alleged herein.

76.  For these reasons, Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt aided and abetted and,
unless enjoined, will contim;e to aid and abet violations of Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the
Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1) and 80b-6(2)].

SIXTH CLAIM
AS TO SIB AND SGC

Vi;)laﬁons of Section 7(d) of the Investment Company Act

77.  Plaintiff Commission repeats and realleges paragraphs 1 through 57 of this
Complaint and incorporated herein by reference as if set forth verbatim.

78.  SIB, an investment company not organized or otherwise creéted under the laws of
the United States or of a State, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, made use of
the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, directly or indirectly, to offer
for sale, sell, or deliver after sale, in connection with a public offering, securities of which SIB
was the issuer, without obtaining an order from the Commission permitting it to register as an
investment company organized or otherwise created under the laws of a foreign country and to
make a public offering of its securities by use of the mails and means or instrumentalities of
interstate commerce.

79.  SGC, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, acted as an
underwriter for SIB, an investment company not organized or otherwise created under the laws
of the United States or of a State that made use of the mails or any means or instrumentality of
interstate commerce, directly or indirectly, to offer for sale, sell, or deliver after sale, in
connection with a public offering, securities of which SIB was the issuer, without obtaining an

order from the Commission permitting it to register as an investment company organized or
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otherwise created under the laws of a foreign country and to make a public offering of its
securities by use of the mails and means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce.

80. For these reasons, SIB and SGC have violated, and unless enjoined, will continue
to violate Section 7(d) of the Investment Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-7(d)].

RELIEF REQUESTED
Plaintiff Commission respectfully requests that this Court:
L

Temporarily, preliminarily, and permanently enjoin: (a) Defendants from violating, or
aiding and abetting violations of, Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the Exchange Act; (b)
Defendants from violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act; (¢) Stanford, Daﬁs, Pendergest-
Holt, SGC, and Stanford Capital from violating, or aiding and abetting violations of, Sections
206(1) and 206(2) of the Advisers Act; and (d) SIB and SCG from violating Section 7(d) of the
Investment Company Act.

1L

Enter an Order immediately freezing the assets of Defendants and directing that all
financial or depository institutions comply with the Court’s Order. Furthermore, order that
Defendants immediately repatriate any funds held at any bank or other financial institution not
subject to the jurisdiction of the Court, and that they direct the deposit of such funds in identified
accounts in the United States, pending conclusion of this matter.

| 1.

Order that Defendants shall file with the Court and serve upon Plaintiff Commission and

the Court, within 10 days of the issuance of this order or three days prior to a hearing on the

Commission’s motion for a preliminary injunction, whichever comes first, an accounting, under
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oath, detailing all of their assets and all funds or other assets received from investors and from
one another.
IV.

Order that Defendants be restrained and enjoined from destroying, removing, mutilating,
altering, concealing, or disposing of, in any manner, any of their books and records or documents
relating to the matters set forth in the Complaint, or the books and records and such documents of
any entities under their control, until further order of the Court.

V.

Order the appointment of a temporary receiver for Defendants, for the benefit of
investors, to marshal, conserve, protect, and hold funds and assets obtained by the defendants
and their agents, co-conspirators, and others involved in this scheme, wherever such assets may
be found, or, with the approval of the Court, dispose of any wasting asset in accordance with the
application and proposed order provided herewith.

VL

Order that the parties may commence discovery immediately, and that notice periods be
shortened to permit the parties to require production of documents, and the taking of depositions
on 72 hours’ notice.

VIL

Order Defendants to disgorge an amount equal to the funds and benefits they obtained

illegally as a result of the violations alleged herein, plus prejudgment interest on that amount.
VIIIL.
Order civil penalties against Defendants pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act

[15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)], Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)], Section 41(e) of

SECv. Stanford International Bank, Ltd,, et al. . 24
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the Investment Company Act [15 U.S.C. § 80a-41(e)], and Section 209(e) of the Advisers Act
[15U.8.C. § 80b-9(e)] for their securities law violations.
IX.
Order that Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt immediately surrender their passports to
the Clerk of this Court, to hold until further order of this Court.
X.
Order such further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.
For the Commission, by its attorneys:

February 16, 2009 Respectfully submitted,

TU o~

STEPHEN J. KOROTASH
Oklahoma Bar No. 5102

J. KEVIN EDMUNDSON
Texas Bar No. 24044020
DAVID B. REECE

Texas Bar No. 24002810
MICHAEL D. KING

Texas Bar No. 24032634

D. THOMAS KELTNER
Texas Bar No. 24007474

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Burnett Plaza, Suite 1900

801 Cherry Street, Unit #18

Fort Worth, TX 76102-6882

(817) 978-6476 (dbr)

(817) 978-4927 (fax)
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\ i US,DISTRICT COURT
: ORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

FILED

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT GOURT '
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF 'rExAs FEB 17 2009

DALLAS DIVISION
CLERK Us. ms'r?—czoum

Deputy  *

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

V. Case No.:

STANFORD INTERNATIONAL BANK, LTD., < T
STANFORD GROUP COMPANY, 8- 09 CV Q 2981
STANFORD CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC,
R. ALLEN STANFORD, JAMES M. DAVIS, and
LAURA PENDERGEST-HOLT

ooaumco:wncm'ememomw:wowowo'wn

Deféndants.

TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER, ORDER FREEZING ASSETS, ORDER
REQUIRING AN ACCOUNTING, ORDER REQUIRING PRESERVATION OF
DOCUMENTS. AND ORDER AUTHORIZING EXPEDITED DISCOVERY

This matter came before me, the undersigned Unitéd States District Judge,' this 16th day
of February 2009, on the application of f’laintiff Secun'tiés and Exchange Commission
(“Commission”) for the issuance of a temporary restraining order against Defendants Stanford
International Bank, Ltd. (“SIB”), Stanford Group Company (“SGC”), Stanford Capital
Management, LLC (“SCM”), R. Allen Stanford (“Stanford”), James M. Davis (“Davis”), and
Laura Pendergest-Holt (“Pendergest-Holt”) (collectively, “Defendants”), and orders freezing
assets, requin'ng an accounting, prohibiting the destruction of documents, pulling the passports of
Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt, authorizing expedited discovery, and alternative service of
process and notice. On the basis of the papers filed by the Commission, and argument of
Commission counsel, the Court finds as follows:

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action and over the

Defendants.
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2. The Commission is a proper party to bring thJS action seeking the relief sought in
its Complaint.

3. - Venue is appropriate in the Northern District of Texas.

4. There is good cause to believe that Defendants have engaged in, and are engaging
in, acts and practices which did, do, and will constitute violations of Section 17(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)], Section IO(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”) [15 U.S.C. §78j(b)], Exchange Act Rule 10b-5 [17
CFR. § 240.10b-5], Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940
(“Advisers Act”) [15 U.S.C. §§ 80b-6(1), (2)], and Section 7(d) of the Investment Company Act
of 1940 (“Investment Company Act”) [15 U.S.C. § 80a-7(d)].

5. There is good cause to believe that Defendants will continue to engage in the acts
and practices constituting the violations set forth in paragraph 4 unless restrained and enjoined
by an brder of this Court.

6. There is good cause to believe that Defendants used improper means to obtain
investor funds and assets. There is also good cause to believe that Defendants will dissipate
assets and that some assets are located abroad.

7. An accounting is appropriate to determine the disposition of investor funds and to

ascertain the total assets that should continue to be frozen.

8. It is necessary to preserve and maintain the business records of Defendants from
destruction.

9. This proceeding is one in which the Commission seeks a preliminary injunction.
SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 2
Temporary Restraining Order, Order Freezing Assets,
and Other Relief
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10.  The t{Iﬁing restrictions of Fed. R. Civ. P. 26(d) and (f), 30(a)(2)(C) and 34 do not
apply to this proceeding in light of the Commission’s requested relief and its demonstration of
good cause.

11. Expedited discovery is appropriate to permit a prompt and fair hearing on the
Commission’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction. |

12. There is good cause to believe that Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt may
seek to leave the United States in order to avoid responsibility for the fraudulent acts alleged

“herein.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

A. Défendants, their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and

all other persons in active concert or participation with them, are restrained and enjoined

from violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act [15U.S.C. § 77q(a)], directly or.
indirectly, in the offer or sale of any security by the use of any fneans or instruments of
transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by the use of the mails, by:
(1)  employing any de\./ice, scheme, or artifice to defraud; or
(2)  obtaining money or property by means of any untrue statement of material
fact or any omission to state a mateﬁal fact necessary in order to make the -
statement(s) made, in the light of the circumstances ﬁnder which they were
made, not misleading; or
€)] engaging in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or
would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser;
B. Defendants, their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and

all other persons in active concert or participation with them, are restrained and enjoined

SECv. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 3
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from violating Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act or Rule 10b-5 [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b) and 17
C.F.R. §240.10b-5], directly or indirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of any
security, by making use of any means or instmmeﬁfality of interstate commerce, or of the

mails, or of any facility of any national securities exchange:
(1)  to use or employ any manipulative or deceptive device or contrivance in
contravention of ‘the rules and regulations promulgated by the

Commission;
(2)  to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

3) to make any untrue statement of a ﬁlateﬂal fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary in order to make the $tatem¢nts made, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; or

4 to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would
opera.te as a fraud or deceit upon any person;

C. Stanford, Davis, Pendergest-Holt, SGC, SCM, their officers, directors, agents,
servants, employees, attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation
with them, are restrained and enjoined from violating Sections 206(1) and 206(2) of the
Advisers Act [15 U.S.C. §§80b-6(1), (2)], directly or indirectly, by use of the mails or any
means or instrumentality of interstate commerce, by:

¢)) émploying any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud any client or
prospective client; or

2) engaging in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates

as a fraud or deceit upon any client or prospective client;

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 4
Temporary Restraining Order, Order Freezing Assets,
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D.  SIB, SGC, their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all

other persons in active concert or participation with them, are restrained and enjoined

from violating Section 7(d) of the Investment Company Act [15 U.S.C. §80a-7(d)], directly
or indirectly, by use of the mails or any means or instrumentality of interstate commetce,
by:

(1)  acting as an investment company, not organized or otherwise created
under the laws 6f thga United States or of a State, and offering for sale,
selling, or delivering aﬁer sale, in connection with a public offering, any
security of which such company is the issuer; or

2) ac-ting as a depositor of, trusteer.f, or underwﬁter for such a company;
unless

3) the Commission, upon application by the investment company not
organized or otherwise created under the laws of the United States or of a
State, issues a conditional or unconditional order permitting such company
to register.and to make a public offering of its secun'ties by use of the
mails and means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce.

5. Defendants, their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and
all other persons in active concert or participation with them, who receive actual notice of this
Ofder by personal service or otherwise, and each of them, are hereby restrained and enjoined
from, directly or indirectly, making any pe;yment or expenditure of funds belonging to or in the
possession, custody, or control of Defendants, or effecting any sale, gift, hypothecation, or other
disposition of any asset belonging to or in the possession, custody, or control of Defendants,

pending a showing to this Court that Defendants have sufficient funds or assets to satisfy all claims

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 5
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arising out of the violations alleged in the Commission’s Complaint or the posting of a bond or
surety sufficient to assure payment of any such claim. This provision shall continue in full force
and effect until further ordered by this Court and shall not expire.

6. All banks, savings and loan associations, savings banks, trust companies,
securities -broker-dealers, commodities dealers, investment companies, other financial or
depository institutions, and investment companies that ﬁold one or more accounts in the name,
on behalf or for the Beneﬁt of Defendants are hereby restrained and enjoined, in regard to any
such account, from engaging in any transaction in securities (except liquidating transactions
necessary to comply with a couﬁ order) or any disbursement of funds or securities pending
further order of this Court. This provision shall continue in full force and effect until further order
by this Court and shall not expire.

7. All other individuals, corporations, partnerships, limited liability companies, and
other artiﬁciai entities are hereby restrained and enjoined from disbursing any funds, securities,
or other property obtained from Defendants without adequate consideration. This provision shall
continue in full force and efféct until further order by this Court and shall not expire.

8. Defendants are hereby required to make an interim accounting, under oath, within
ten days of the issuance of this order or three days prior to any hearing on the Commission’s
Motion for Preliminary Injunction, whichever is isooner: (1) detailing all monies and other
benefits which each received, directly or indirectly, as a result of the activities alleged in the
Complaint (including the date on which the monies or other benefit was received and the name,
address, and telephone number of the person paying the money or providing the benefit); (2)

listing all current assets wherever they may be located and by whomever they are being held

(including the name and address of the holder and the amount or value of the holdings); and (3)

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 6
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listing all accounts with any financial or brokerage institution maintained in the name of, on
behalf of, or for the benefit of, Defendants (including the name and address of the account holder
and the account number) and the amount held in each account at any point dqring the period
from January 1, 2000 through the date of the accounting. This provision shall continue in full
force and effect until further order by this Court and shall not expire.

9. Defendants, their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and
all other persons in active concert or participation with them, including any bank, securities
broker-dealer, or any financial or depositary institution, who receives actual notice of this Order
by personal service or otherwise, and each of them, are hereby restrained and enjoined from
destroying, removing, mutilating, altering, concealing, or disposing of, in any manner, vany books
and records owned by, or pertaining to, the financial transactions and assets of Defendants or any
entities under their control. This provision shall continue in full force and effect until further order
by this Court and shall not expire. |

10.  The United States Marshal in any judicial district in which Defendants do
business or may be found, or in which any Receivership Asset may be located, is authorized and
directed to make service of process ét the request of the Commission.

11. The Commission is authorized to serve process on, and give notice of these
proceedings and the relief granted herein to, Defendants by U.S. Mail, e;mail, facsimile, or any
other means authorized by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

12. Expedited discovery may take place consistent with the following:

A Any party may notice and conduct depositions upon oral examination and
may request and obtain production of documents or other things for

inspection and copying from parties prior to the expiration of thirty days

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 7
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after service of a summons and the Plaintiff Commission’sl Complaint
upon Defendants.

B. All parties shall comply with the provisions of Fed. R. Civ. P. 45
regarding issuance and service of subpoenas, unless the person designated
to provide testimony or to produce documents and things agrees to provide
the testimony or to produce the documents or things without the issuance

- of a subpoena or to do so at a place other than one at which testimony or
production can be compelled.

C. Any party 'may notice and conduct depositions upon oral examination
subject to minimum notice of seventy-two (72) hours.

D. All parties shall produce for inspection and copying all documents and
things that are requested within seventy-two (72) hours of service of a
written .request for those documents and things.

E. All parties shall serve written responses to written interrogatories within
seventy-two (72) hours after service of the interrogatories.

13. All parties shall serve written responses to any other party’s request for discovery
and the interim accountings to be provided by Defendants by delivery to the Plaintiff
Commission address as follows: |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Fort Worth Regional Office

Attention: David Reece

Bumett Plaza, Suite 1900

801 Cherry Street, Unit #18

Fort Worth, TX 76102-6882
Facsimile: (817) 978-4927

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. 8
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and by delivery to other parties at such address(es) as may be designated by them in writing,
Such delivery shall be made by the most expeditious means available, including e-mail and
facsimile. _

14.  Stanford, Davis, and Pendergest-Holt shall surrender their passports, pending the
determir;ation of the Commission’s request for a preliminary injunction, and are barred from
traveling outside the United States.

15.  Defendants, their directors, officers, agents, servants, employees, attoreys,
depositories, banks, and those persons in active concert or participation with anyone or more of
them, and each of them, shall: |

(a) take such steps as are necessary to repatriate to the territory of the United States

all funds and assets of invg:stqrs described in the Commission's Complaint in this
action which are held by them, or are under their direct or indirect control, jointly
or singly, and deposit such funds into the Registry of the United States District
Court, Northern District of Texas; and

(b) provide the Commission and the Court a written description of the funds and

assets so repatriated.

16.  Defendants shall serve, by the most expeditious means possible, including e-mail
and facsimile, any papers in opposition to the Commission’s Motion for Préliminary Injunction
and for other relief no later than 72 hours before any scheduled hearing on the Motion for
Preliminary Injunction. The Commission shall serve any reply at least 24 hours before any

. hearing on the Motion for Preliminary Injunction by the most expeditious means available,

including facsimile.

SECv. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al, . 9
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17.  Unless extended by agreement of the parties, the portion of this order that
constitutes a temporary restraining order shall expire at i o’clock P.m. on the oz_ day of
[&f dn 2009 or at such later date as may be ordered by this Court. All other prov_isions of
this order shall remain in full force and effect until specifically modified by further order of this
Court. Unless the Court rules upon the Commission’s Motion for Preliminary Injunction
pursué.nt to Fed. R. Civ. P. 43(e), adjudication of the Commission’s Motion for Preliminary

Injunction shall take place at the United States Courthouse, ecn Vist Dallas,

Texas, on the JA day of lygcl«\ ,2009,at O o’clockg.m. [[pp CDW\M!:(‘CQ .ﬁ-(.ge‘}'
Dalles Toras T4 (Sarl Cabell Bldg).

EXECUTED AND ENTERED at [{:4D . o’clockm. CST this 16 day of February

2009.
L smr—
UNITED STATES DISTRICT E
SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al. '_ 10
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| U.S. DISTRICT COURT

. NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
&v S FILED
Q) IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COYRT
QQ\\ FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS | o 4 7 oy
DALLAS DIVISION g

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

CLERK u.S. DlSTﬂ(TZ(‘)URT

Deputy

Plaintiff,

v. Case No.:

STANFORD GROUP COMPANY,

STANFORD CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC,
R. ALLEN STANFORD, JAMES M. DAVIS, and
LAURA PENDERGEST-HOLT

8-09CV0298-1,

§
§
§
§
g
STANFORD INTERNATIONAL BANK, LTD., §
§
§
§
§
§
§

Defendants.

ORDER APPOINTING RECEIVER

This matter came before me, the' undersigne& United States District Judge, on the motion
of Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”) for the appointment of a
Receiver for Defendants Stanford International Bank, Ltd., Stanford Group Company, Stanford
‘ Capital Management, LLC, Robert Allen Stanford, James M. Davis, and Laura Pendergest-Holt
(“Defendants™). It appears that this Order Appointing Receiver is both necessary and appropriate
in order to prevent waste and dissipation —of the assets of Defendants to the detriment of the
investors. |

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that:
1. This Court assumes exclusive jurisdiction and takes possession of the assets,

monies, securities, properties, real and personai, tangible and intangible, of whatever kind and
description, wherever located, and the legally recognized privileges (with regard to the entities),
of the Defendants and all entities they own or control (“Receivership Assets”), and the books and

records, client lists, account statements, financial and accounting documents, computers,

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.
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computer hard drives,‘ computer disks, internet exchange servers telephones, personal digital
devices and other informational resources of or in possession of the Defendants, or issued by
Defendants and in possession of any agent or employee of the Defendants (“Receivership
Records™). ' o ' : |

2. Ralph 8. Janvey of Dallas, Texas, is hereby appointed Receiver for the
Receivership Assets and Receivership Records (collectively, “Receivership Estate”), with the
full power of an equity receiver under common law as well as such powers as are enumerated
herein as of the date of this Order. The Receiver shall not be required to post a bond unless
directed by the Court but is hereby ordered to well and faithfully perform the duties of his office:
to timely account for all monies, securities, and other properties which may come into his hands;
and to abide by and perform all duties set forth in this Order. Except for an act of willful
malfeasance or gross negligence, the Receiver shall not be liable for any loss or damage incurred
by the Receivership Estate, or any of Defendants, the Defendants’ clients or associates, or their
subsidiaries or affiliates, their officers, directors, agents, and .employees, or by any of
Defendants’ creditors or equity holders because of any act performed or not performed by him or
his agents or assigns in connection with the discharge of his duties and responsibilities

hereunder.

3. The duties of the Receiver shall be specifically limited to matters relating to the
Receivership Estate and unsettled claims thereof remaining in the possession of the Receiver as
of the date of this Order. Nothing in this Order shall be construed to require further investigation
of Receivership Estate assets heretofore liquidatedv and/or * distributed or claims of the

Receivership Estate settled prior to issuance of this Order. However, this paragraph shall not be

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.
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construed to limit the powers of the Receiver in any reggrd with respect to transactions that may
have occurred prior to the date of this Order.

4, Until the expiration date of this Order or further Order of this Court, Receiver is
authorized to immediately take an& have complete and exclusive control, possession, and
custody of the Receivership Estate and to any assets traceable to assets owned by the

Receivership Estate.

5. As of the date of entry of this Order, the Receiver is specifically directed and
authorized to perform the following duties:

(a)  Maintain full control of the Receivership Estate with the power to retain or
remove, as the Receiver deems necessary or advisable, any officer, director, independent

contractor, employee, or agent of the Receivership Estate;

®) Collect, marshal, and take custody, control, and possession of all the
funds, accounts, mail, and other assets of, or in the possession or under the control of, the
Receivership Estate, or assets traceable to assets owned or controlled by the Receivership
Estate, wherever situated, the income and profit therefrom and all sums of money now or
hereafter due or owing to the Receivership Estate with full power to collect, receive, and take
possession of, without limitation, all goods, chattel, rights, credits, monies, effects, lands,
leases, books and records, work papers, records of account, including computer maintained
information, contracts, ﬁnan_bial records, monies on hand in banks and other financial
initiations, and other papers and documents of other individuals, partnerships, or corporations
whose interests are now held by or under the direction, possession, custody, or control of the

Receivership Estate;

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.
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(c)  Institute such actions or proceedings to impose a constructive trust, obtain
possession, and/or recover judgment with respect to persons or entities who received assets

or records tracgable to the Receivership Estate. All such-actions shall be filed in this Court;

(d) Obtain, by presentation of this Order, documents, books, records,
accoun.ts, deposits, testimony, or other information within the custody or control of any
person or entity sufficient to identify accounts, properties, liabilities, causes of action, or »
employees of the Receivership Estate. The attendance of a person or entity for examination
and/or i)roduction of documénts may iae corﬁpelled in a manner provided in Rule 45, Fed. R.
Civ. P., or as provided under the laws of any foréi gn country where such documents, books,

records, accounts, deposits, or testimony may be located;

(e) Without breaching the peace and, if necessary, with the assistance of local
peace officers or United States marshals to enter and secure any premises, wherever located
or situated, in order to take possession, custody, or control of, or to identify the location or

existence of, Receivership Estate assets or records;

“

® Make such ordinary and necessary payments, distributions, and
disbursements as the Receiver deems advisable or proper for the marshaling, maintenanée, or
preservation of the Receivership Estate. Receiv-er is further authorized to contract and
negotiate with any claimants against the Receivership Estate (including, without limitation,
creditors) for the purpose of compromising or settling any claim. To this purpose, in those
instances in which Receivership Estate assets serve as collateral to secured creditors, the
Receiver has the authority to surrender such assets to secured creditors, conditional upon the

waiver of any deficiency of collateral,;
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(g)  Perform all acts necessary to conserve, hold, manage, and preserve the
value of the Receivership Estate, in order to prevent any irreparable loss, damage, and injury

to the Estate;

()  Enter into such agreements in connection with the administration of the
Receivership Estate, including, but not limited to, the employment of such managers, agents,
custodians, consultants, investigators, attorneys, and accountants as Receiver judges
necessary to perform the duties set forth in this Order and to compensate them from the

Receivership Assets;

1) Institute, prosecute, compromise, adjust, intervene in, or become party to
such actions or proceedings in state, federal, or foreign courts that the Receiver deems
necessary and advisable to preserve the va_lue of the Receivership Estate, or that the Receiver
deems necessary and advisable to carry out the Receiver’s mandate under this Order and
likewise to defend, compromise, or adjust or otherwise dispose of any or all actions or
proceedings instituted against the Receivership Estate that the Receiver deems necessary and

advisable to carry out the Receiver’s mandate under this Order;

f)) Preserve the Receivership Estate and minimize expenses in furtherance of
maximum and timely disbursement thereof to claimants;
(k)  Promptly provide the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
and other governmental agencies with all information and documentation they may seek in

connection with its regulatory or investigatory activities;

) Prepare and submit periodic reports to this Court and to the parties as

directed by this Court; and

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.
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(m)  File with this Court requests for approval of reasonable fees to be paid to
the Receiver and any person or entity retained by him and interim and final accountings for

any reasonable expenses incurred and paid pursuant to order of this Court.

6. Upon the request of the Receiver, the United States Marshal’s Office is hereby
ordered to assist the Receiver in carrying out his duties to take possession, custody, or control of,
or identify the location of, any Receivership Estate assets or records.

7. Creditors and all other persons are hereby restrained and enjoined from the
following actions, ex~cept in thls Coﬁrt, unless this Court, consistent with geheral equitable
principals and in accordance with its ancillary equitable jurisdiction in this matter, orders that
such actions may be conducted in another forum or jurisdiction:

(a) | The commencement or continuation, including the issuance or
employment of process, of any judicial, administrative, or other proceeding against the
Receiver, any of the defendants, the Receivership Estate, or any agent, officer, or
employee related to the Receivership Estate, arising from the subject matter of this civil ‘
action; or

(b) The enforcement, against the Receiver, or any of the defendants, of any
judgment that would attach to or encumber the Receivership Estate that was obtained
before the commencement of this proéeeding.

8. Creditors and all other persons are hereby restrained and enjoined, without prior
approval of the Court, from:

(a) Any act to obtain possession of the Receivership Estate assets;

'(b) Any act to create, perfect, or enforce any lien against the property of the

Receiver, or the Receivership Estate;

SECv. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.
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()  Any act to collect, assess, or recover a claim against the Receiver or that
would attach to or encumber the Receivership Estate; or
(d) . The set off of any debt owed by the Receivership Estate or secured by the

Receivership Estate assets based on any claim against the Receiver or the Receivership

Estate.

9. Defendants, their respective officers, agents, and employees and all persons in
active concert or participation with them who receive notice of this Order by personal service or
otherwise, inéluding, but hot limited to, any ﬁnanciai institution, broker-dealer, investment
adviser, private equi;[y fund or investment banking firm, and each of them, are hereby ordered,
restrained, and enjoined from, directly or indirectly, making any payment or expenditure of any
Receivership Estate assets that are owned by Defendants or in the actual or constructive
possession of any entity directly or indirectly owned or controlied or under common control with
the Receivership Estate, or effecting any sale, gift, hypothecation, assignment, transfer,
conveyance, encumbrance, disbursement, dissipation, or concealment of such assets. A copy of
this Order may be served on any bank, savings and loan, broker-dealer, or any other financial or
depository institution to restrain and enjoin any such institution from disbursing any of the
Receivership Estate assets. Upon presentment of this Order, all persons, including financial
instituﬁons, shall provide account balance information, transaction histories, all account records
and any other Receivership Records to the Receiver or his agents, in the same manner as they -
would be provided were the Receiver the signatory on the account.

10. Defendants, and their respective agents, officers, and employees and all persons in
active concert or participation with them are hereby enjoined from doing any act or thing

whatsoever to interfere with the Receiver’s taking control, possession, or management of the
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Receivership Estate or to in any way interfere with the Receiver or to harass or interfere with the
duties of the Receiver or to interfere in any manner with the exclusive jurisdiction of this Court
over the Receivership Estate, including the ﬁling or prosecuting any actions or proceedings
which involve the Receiver or which affect the Receivership Assets or Receivership Records,
spéciﬁca]ly including any proceeding initiated pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code,
except with the permission of this Court. Any actions so authorized to determine disputes
relating to Receivership Assets and Receivership Records shall be filed in this Court.

11.  Defendants, their respective officers, agents, and employees and all persons in
active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal
service or otherwise, including any financial institution, broker-dealer, investment adviser,
private equity fund or investment banking firm, and each of them shall:

(a) To the extent they have possession, custody, or control of same, provide
immediate access to and control and possession of the Receivership Estate assets and records,
including securities, monies, and property of any kind, real and personal, including all keys,
passwords, entry codes, and all monies deposited in any bank deposited to the credit of the
Defendants, wherever situated, and the original of all books, records, documents, accounts,
computer printouts, disks, and the like of Defendants to Receiver or his duly authorized

agents,

(b) Cooperate with the Receiver and his duly authorized agents by promptly
and honestly responding to all requests for information regarding Receivership Assets and
Records and by promptly acknowiedging to third parties the Receiver’s authority to act on
behalf of the Receivership Estate and by providing such authoﬁiations, signatures, releases,

attestations, and access as the Receiver or his duly authorized agents may reasonably request;
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(¢)  Provide the Commission with a prompt, full accounting of all
Receivership Estate assets and documents outside the territory of the United States which
are held either: (1) by them, (2) for their benefit, or (3) under their control;

(d)  Transfer to the territory of the United States all Receivership Estate assets
and records in foreign countries held either: (1) by them, (2) for their benefit, or (3)
under their control; and

(¢) Hold and retain all such repatriated Receivership Estate assets and
documents and prevent any transfer, disposition, br dissipation whatsoever of any such
assets or documents, until such time as they> may be transferred into the possession of the
Receiver.

12.  Any financial institution, broker-dealer, investment adviser, private equity fund or

" investment banking firm or person that holds, controls, or maintains accounts or assets of or on
behalf of any Defendant, or has held, controlled, or maintained any account or ésset of or on
behalf of any defendant or relief defendant since January 1, 1990, shall:

(a) Hold and retain within its control and prohibit the withdrawal, removal,
assignment, transfer, pledge, hypothecation, encumbrance, disbursement, dissipation,
conversion, sale, gift, or other disposal of any of the assets, funds, or other property held by
or on behalf of any defendant or relief defendant in any account maintained in the name of or

for the benefit of any defendant or relief defendant in whole or in part except:

1) as directed by further order of this Court, or
(i1) as directed in writing by the Receiver or his agents;
(b) Deny access to any safe deposit boxes that are subject to access by any

Defendant; and

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.
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(¢)  The Commission dnd Receiver may obtain, by presentation of this Order,
documents, books, records, accounts, deposits, or other information within the custod}; or
control of any person or entity sufficient to identify accounts, properties, liabilities, causes of .
actidn, or employees of the Receivership Estite. The attendance of a person or entity for
examination and/or production of documents may be compelled in a manner provided in
Rule 45, Fed. R. Civ. P., or as provided under the laws of any foreign country where such

documents, books, records, accounts, deposits, or testimony may be located;

13. The Defendants, their officers, agents, and employees and all persons in active
concert or participation with them and other persons who have notice of this Order by personal
service or otherwise, are hereby restrained and enjoined from destroying, mutilating, concealing,
altering, transferring, or otherwise disposing of, in any manner, d{rectly or indirectly, any
contracts, accounting data, correspondence, advertisements, computer tapeé, disks or other
computerized records, books, written or printed records, handwritten notes, telephone logs,
telephone scripts, receipt books, ledgers, personal and business canceled checks and check
registers, bank statements, appointment books, copies of federal, state, or local business or
personal income or property tax returns, and other documents or records of any kind that relate in

any way to the Receivership Estate or are relevant to this action.

14.  The Redeiver 1s hereby authorized to make appropriate notiﬁcaﬁon to the United
States Postal Service to forward delivery of any mail addressed to the Defendants, or any
company or entity under the direction and control of the Defendants, to himself. Further, the
Receiver is hereby authorized to open and inspect all such mail to determine the location or

identity of assets or the existence and amount of claims.

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.
Appendix 49




Case 3:09-cv-02151-N  Document9  Filed 12/29/2009 Page 53 of 56
Case 3:.09-cv-00298-. Document 10  Filed 02/17/2009 Page 11 of 11

15.  Nothing in this Order shall prohibit aﬂy federal or state law enforcement or
regulatory authority from commencing or prosecuting an action against the Defendants, their
agents, officers, or employees.

So Ordered and signed, this lbﬁtlay of February 2009.

UNITED STATES DISTRICTJUDGE

SEC v. Stanford International Bank, Ltd., et al.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
DALLAS DIVISION

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

\2 Case No.: 3:09-CV-00298-L
STANFORD INTERNATIONAL BANK, LTD.,
STANFORD GROUP COMPANY,

STANFORD CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC,
R. ALLEN STANFORD, JAMES M. DAVIS, and
LAURA PENDERGEST-HOLT,

LT L LN U LD O O O O O O L L

Defendants.

NOTICE OF APPEARANCE OF COUNSEL FOR RECEIVER

The undersigned counsel hereby give notice that they have been retained to
serve as counsel of record for Ralph S. Janvey in his capacity as Receiver in the above-
referenced matter. Counsel hereby requests that copies of all notices, orders and

pleadings relating to this matter be served on the undersigned counsel.
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Respectfully submitted,
BAKER BOTTS L.L.P.

By: /s/Kevin Sadler
Kevin M. Sadler, Lead Attorney
State Bar No. 17512450
kevin.sadler@bakerbotts.com
Robert I. Howell
State Bar No. 10107360
robert.howell@bakerbotts.com
David T. Arlington
State Bar No. 00790238
david.arlington@bakerbotts.com
1500 San Jacinto Center
98 San Jacinto Boulevard
Austin, Texas 78701-4078
Tel: 512.322.2500
Fax: 512.322.2501

Timothy S. Durst

State Bar No. 00786924
tim.durst@bakerbotts.com
BAKER BOTTS L.L.P.
2001 Ross Avenue

Dallas, Texas 75201-2980
tel.:  (214) 953-6500
fax.: (214)953-6503

Attorneys for Ralph Janvey, Receiver
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Certificate of Service
On February 17, 2009 I electronically submitted the foregoing document with the
clerk of court for the U.S. District Court, Northern District of Texas, using the electronic
case filing system of the court. I hereby certify that I have served all counsel and/or pro

se parties of record electronically or by another manner authorized by Federal Rule of

Civil Procedure 5(b)(2).

/s/ Kevin Sadler
Kevin Sadler
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